Child Care Resource and Referral Services Request for Responses

RFR Number-2013 EEC CCRRS 003

August 2012

Questions and Answers

The questions listed below include substantive questions posed at the bidders’ conferences held on August 21 and 22, 2012, as well as those submitted electronically.  Some of the questions may have been consolidated into more comprehensive questions.  The answers to the questions are expressly incorporated into the terms of the RFR.

Please note that any other major changes to the RFR will be posted as Updates or Amendments to the RFR on Comm-PASS and on the Department of Early Education and Care’s (EEC’s) website.

Submission Requirements

Q1: 
Will the organizational chart that bidders must submit in response to Narrative Question I, subpart 2 be counted in the 15 page limitation?
A1: 
No, the organizational chart and any other information provided in response to Question I, subpart 2, including job descriptions and descriptions of staff expertise and backgrounds will not be counted in the 15 page limitation.

Q2: 
Appendix C of the RFR includes “Environmental Response Submission Compliance” terms that require bidders to submit “a photocopy of the ream cover/wrapper.”  Will this sheet count toward the 15 page limitation?

A2: 
No, this sheet will not be counted toward the 15 page limitation.

Q3: 
Are the Supplier Diversity Program Plan Forms exempt from the 15 double sided page limitation?

A3: 
Yes, the Supplier Diversity Program Plan forms are exempt from the page limitation.
Q4: 
Are the budget forms and associated budget narratives exempt from the 15 double sided page limitation?  

A4: 
Yes, the budget forms and budget narratives are exempt from the page limitation.
Q5: 
Does a bidder need to put their agency’s name on the top of each page they submit as part of its proposal/RFR Response?

A5: 
Bidders need only place their agency’s name on the top of their narrative responses to the questions posed in Appendix A of the RFR.

Budgets, Fiscal and Rates

Q6: 
If you are bidding to provide services in cities and towns located in multiple regions, would you be submitting multiple budgets? 

A6: 
Yes, bidders need to submit 2 budgets for each set of cities and towns they are seeking to serve that are located within a region.  Bidders must submit a Purchase of Service Budget and a Programmatic Budget as well as a budget narrative to accompany each of these budgets.
Q7: 
At the bidders’ conference, bidders were instructed to submit separate budgets for each region a bidder is bidding on.  Can bidders submit one narrative for all of the towns they are proposing to serve? 

A7: 
Each bidder will need to submit a programmatic budget and budget narrative and a Purchase of Service (POS) budget and budget narrative for each region for which they are applying.
Q8:  
What period of time/ term should the budgets we submit cover?

A8:  
Budgets submitted should cover the period January 1, 2013 – June 30, 2013.  

Q9: 
Are the funding amounts listed in Appendix F for each city and town for six months?

A9: 
Yes, the funding amounts listed in Appendix F are for the period January 1, 2013 to June 30, 2013.

Q10: 
If we are proposing to subcontract some of the required services, where do we reflect this in the budgets?

A10:  
Any bidders proposing to subcontract some of the required services should place the amount of the subcontract in Line 5 of the Programmatic budget and in Line item 206 of the POS budget.   Additionally, bidders should provide sufficient detail regarding the specific expenses associated with any subcontracts in their budget narratives.

Q11: 
Concerning Management Costs, is there a % cap on the amount an agency can charge for Administration/Management Costs?

A11: 
The RFR does not set a cap for administrative costs.

Q12: 
For new providers, is there an allowance for start-up costs and how should these costs be identified in the budget? Should they be described in the Budget Narrative or in the Implementation Plan? 

A12: 
There is no specific allowance for start-up costs.  You may identify these items in the “Other” line of the budget and provide detail regarding such items in your budget narrative and implementation plan.  You may note in the implementation plan whether your entity would need additional start-up funding (above and beyond that available in the city/town allocations) if it were available.

Q13: 
On page 6 of the RFR it says: “There is $2,591,798 available for funding CCRR services from January 1, 2013 through June 30, 2013.  Commencing July 1, 2013, EEC estimates that approximately the same amount of funding will be available subject to appropriation.”  Does this mean, for July 1, 2013 – June 30, 2014, the estimated amount is $2,591,798 or is it estimated to be double that, or approximately $5,183,596?

A13: 
The estimated funding for FY14 is approximately $5,183,596.
Q14: 
The RFR indicates $2,591,798 will be distributed for Child Care Resource & Referral services for 6 months.  Over 12 months that equals $5,183,596.  Line item 3000-2000 in the FY 13 state budget is $5,933,862 “For regional administration and coordination of services provided by child care resource and referral agencies.” What entities are receiving the difference of $750,266, how much is being provided to those entities, and for what services?  Why is $5,933,862 not being allocated to the child care resource and referral agencies? 

A14: 
All funds in line item 3000-2000 are used to support CCRR activities: 

· Approximately $344,000 supports Mass 211 which, among other activities, answers child care related calls; conducts searches in NACCRRA and provides search results to callers either verbally and/or via email; screens callers for subsidy eligibility and, where applicable, enrolls them in Kinderwait; reviews/corrects Kinderwait data with callers who receive confirmation letters; provides client/public access information to callers about EEC Self Service Household Access System; and assesses all child care callers for additional needs to make appropriate referrals;

· Approximately $198,000 has been set aside for transitioning CCRR services in FY 13; some of this funding may be available to entities that do not currently hold CCRR contracts;

· Approximately $165,000 has been set aside for the creation of marketing materials to be distributed statewide conveying the role of CCRRs, the services they provide and how such services may be accessed by the public;

· Approximately $43,000 has been set aside to purchase a license and collect NACCRRA data directly at EEC; this figure may be adjusted based on the actual costs for transitioning, collecting and maintaining data.

Q15:  
Will existing providers from Region 4 continue to be paid Region 4 rates or some other rates?
A15: 
Existing providers will continue to be paid their Region 4 rates until otherwise notified by EEC.

Q16: 
Will new providers providing services in the former Region 4 cities or towns be paid Region 4 rates or some other rates?

A16:  
New providers providing services in former Region 4 cities or towns will be paid the Region 4 rates.

Q17: 
The RFR articulates a substantial number of new services to be provided by child care resource and referral agencies, however, the funding has been reduced.  Has EEC conducted a cost analysis or time study to demonstrate specific cost savings by function that will be realized in the six month contract period ending 6/30/13 that will fund the new services?  If this has been analyzed can EEC provide this analysis to all potential bidders? 

A17:  
EEC has not conducted a cost analysis or time study. 

CCFA 

Q18: 
Will the new Child Care Financial Assistance (CCFA) system have the capability to upload documents and is it the expectation that CCRRs will upload documents?  
A18: 
CCFA will have the capability to upload documents and over the term of the contract CCRRs will eventually need to upload documents.  EEC will work with contractors to address electronic storage issues.  
 

Q19: 
Is the CCFA scheduled for deployment on Nov. 1, 2012. 
A19: 
Yes, the voucher management component of the CCFA is scheduled for roll out on November 1, 2012.
Updates to RFR

Q20: 
Where should bidders look for updates or amendments to the RFR?

A20:  
Updates and/or amendments will be posted on both Comm-PASS and on EEC’s website. 

 

Q21: 
May a bidder submit attachments, other than those specified and required in the Narrative Questions Section of the RFR and if so, will those attachments be factored in scoring the bidder’s proposal? 
A21:  
EEC will only review and consider attachments required by the RFR when scoring bidders’ proposals. 
 

Required Services

Q22: 
Is EEC developing a Smart Phone application?
A22: 
No, it will be the responsibility of contractors to develop a Smart Phone application.  
 

Q23:  
On page 13 of the RFR it states that CCRRs must “convene individual meetings with each CFCE in service area at least four times per year.”  Then on page 25 of the RFR it states that meetings must “occur at least annually with the CFCE grantee(s) covering the CCRR’s service area.”  Which is correct?

A23: 
CCRRs must meet with each CFCE in their service area at least four times per year.  These meetings may be done individually with just one CFCE or with more than one CFCE present.

Q24: 
If there are four CFCE grantees in the service area I am proposing to provide CCRR services in, must I meet four times per year with each CFCE grantee and thus have at least 16 meetings per year?

A24:  
As stated above, meetings must occur with each CFCE at least four times per year but such meetings may be held with more than one CFCE present at each meeting; meetings do not have to be conducted individually with only one CFCE at a time.  Consequently, if there are four CFCEs in a CCRR’s service area, a CCRR may have four meetings per year to satisfy this requirement provided all four CFCEs are present at all four meetings.

Q25: 
If I, as a Director of a CCRR attend CFCE meetings as a council member for the CFCE, do those meetings count toward satisfying the 4 times per year requirement?  

A25. 
No, they would not count.
 

Q26: 
Will CCRRs be required to conduct home visits as part of monitoring In-Home/ Relative providers? 
A26: 
In general, CCRRs will not be required to conduct home visits to each In-Home/Relative provider in their service area.  However, if there are fiscal and/or health and safety issues that arise regarding a specific provider, EEC may request the CCRR’s assistance in contacting the provider and conducting specific monitoring.  EEC will provide the CCRR with guidance in such cases.
 
Q27: 
On page 25 of the RFR (in the Outcomes/Measures Section) it states “ensure 100% follow up/ check-in calls completed for all services offered.”  What is meant by “all services offered” and does it refer to voucher families; will the CCRR be expected to check-in with parents for all types of information provided or is this limited to referrals?
A27: 
CCRRs awarded contracts must perform check-ins with recipients of enhanced referral services only.  Check-ins may be performed via telephone calls, e-mails, letters, and/or surveys; they must be quantifiable and identify the respondent(s) and produce measurable results.  

Q28: 
CCRRs are required to conduct family satisfaction surveys with families who received enhanced services. There is some confusion around the permissible methods of conducting these surveys. In the RFR, page 11, the methods are phone calls or emails; on page 14 the methods are phone calls, emails, and on-line; on page 25 the requirement is that 100% of families receiving enhanced services are given a satisfaction phone call. Can you clarify the permissible methods of conducting satisfaction surveys with families who receive enhanced services?

A28: 
Customer satisfaction surveys must be provided to recipients of all types of services offered, not just recipients of enhanced referral services.  Such surveys may be conducted via telephone calls, e-mails, by mail, and/or through an on-line application or tool.  Customer satisfaction surveys must be quantifiable and identify the respondent and produce measurable results.

Q29: 
In the RFR, on page 25, it states CCRRs are required to attempt to call 100% of families within one week of referral(s) to inquire how their search is going.  Given the volume of referral clients, can you clarify whether this requirement pertains to enhanced services only or to all referral services?  

A29: 
As stated above in A27, this requirement pertains to enhanced referral services only.

Q30. 
Page 14 of the RFR it states “conduct random test case calls to evaluate service.” 
 
Can these evaluations be conducted via regular mail and/or email?

A30.  
Yes, evaluation of services can be conducted by regular mail or email.

Q31: 
In parts of the RFR where it states to call providers to ascertain interest in increasing their licensed capacity, are other forms of communication (email/mail) acceptable as options?

A31: 
Yes, other forms of communication can be used to ascertain providers’ interest in increasing their licensed capacity.

Q32: 
Must a CCRR have one administrative office in each region?  This may not make sense where a CCRR is serving cities and towns that are contiguous to one another even though they are in different regions.  
A32: 
The RFR states that a CCRR must have an administrative office in each region that it serves.  If a bidder wants to propose not having at least one administrative office in each region it seeks to serve, the bidder should explain the reasons for this decision as part of its answer to Question I “Implementation Plan,” subpart 1 and specifically explain which cities and towns will be served by that office and how the location will meet the needs of the families being served in that service area.

Q33: 
What is the definition of an administrative office; specifically, does an outpost (which is staffed and open and available to the general public and to voucher providers/Systems and families receiving EEC financial assistance) meet the requirement?  

A33: 
An administrative office must house administration staff and have sufficient space and resources to meet the needs of the families being served in the selected region or service area.  As stated in the previous question, a bidder must adequately explain in its response to Question 1 of the Narrative Questions the number of administrative offices it is proposing and the cities and towns such offices will serve and how the needs of families in that region or service area will be met.

Q34: 
Will CCRRs be able to charge providers small fees to attend trainings offered by the CCRRs (similar to those allowed in the EPS grants)?

A34: 
Yes, CCRRs may charge providers small fees to attend trainings. Bidders should outline as part of their implementation plan any fees they anticipate charging providers to attend their trainings.  EEC reserves the right to set a maximum fee amount that may be charged for such trainings.

Q35: 
Is subcontracting of services allowed in this RFR?

A35: 
A bidder may propose to subcontract services with the exception of voucher management services.  Voucher management services must be provided by the contractor that directly holds the CCRR contract with EEC.  Voucher management services include assessing/reassessing families for early education and care vouchers, billing for voucher services, monitoring of voucher providers and family child care systems, and managing voucher agreements with providers and family child care systems.  Bidders must clearly outline in their response to Narrative Question No. I, subpart 3 any proposed subcontract relationships.

Q36: 
On pages 15-16 of the RFR it mentions “risk assessments” for all providers.  Has EEC developed a risk assessment tool or is there another process that you are referring to when you use the phrase “risk assessment”?

A36: 
EEC will develop a risk assessment tool for CCRRs to use in monitoring voucher providers and family child care systems.

Q37: 
On page 17 (Required Services) section 4a requires that the CCR&R conduct a formal annual training and technical assistance needs assessment of all providers/Systems in its service area.  Currently, Educator & Provider Support (EPS) grantees are also required to conduct an annual training needs assessment.  Is it permissible to work collaboratively with the EPS grantee to produce and implement one needs assessment to meet the requirements of both EPS and CCRR contracts so as to reduce duplication and avoid confusion of providers?
A37: 
The RFR does not prohibit collaborations to meet the requirements of the RFR.  However, proposals will be reviewed and scored based on the documented and detailed commitment of the bidder to provide the required services outlined in the RFR.
Q38: 
The RFR on page 8, section A.1.c indicates that census data must be used to review family demographics.  Is it possible to use MA DOR data for the analysis? 

A38: 
Census data must be used as stated in the RFR.

Q39: 
I have a question regarding what the transition period would look like.  If a new agency was awarded the contract to start 1/1/13 are they expected to take on the entire function from the outgoing CCRR on that date?  

A39: 
Bidders are asked to provide a detailed six month implementation plan at Appendix A, Question 1.  Bidders are encouraged to address transition periods within their responses to ensure that by June 30, 2013, an agency has in place all necessary staff, administrative and out-posting offices, resources, collaborations with CFCE and EPS grantees and other state agencies, in order to provide all of  the required services. 

Q40: 
Would there be a transition period to take on pieces of the required services, i.e., billing or seeing clients, file transfers, etc.?  Would a transition period happen before 1/1/13 for some items?  

A40: 
Bidders are asked to provide a detailed six month implementation plan at Appendix A, Question 1.  Bidders are encouraged to address transition periods within their responses.
Q41: 
Is it the expectation that all FCC orientations will be done exclusively through the CCRRs or will other agencies be doing them?  

A41: 
Successful bidders need to fulfill the requirements outlined in the RFR.  As stated on page 18 of the RFR, CCRRs will be required to provide an Orientation to licensing for new providers/educators either directly or through collaboration with other entities.

Q42: 
Who is going to be responsible for doing more Train the Trainers for FCC orientations – both module 1 and module 2? 

A42: 
EEC will likely provide Train the Trainers sessions for CCRRs.
Q43: 
Will EEC still be responsible for holding the potential provider meetings? 

A43:  
Yes, EEC will still be responsible for potential provider meetings.  CCRRS will be required to provide an Orientation to licensing for new providers/educators either directly or through collaboration with other entities.
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